City of San Antonio

ADDENDUM V

SUBJECT: Request for Proposal (RFP) for La Villita — Retail Shops, Galleries & Working Artist Galleries,
(RFP 014-043, RFX# 6100004716), Scheduled to Open: November 12, 2014; Date of Issue:
July 09, 2014

FROM: Denise D. Gallegos, C.P.M., CPPB
Procurement Administrator

DATE: October 2, 2014

THIS NOTICE SHALL SERVE AS ADDENDUM NO. V TO THE ABOVE REFERENCED
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

A. THE ABOVE MENTIONED REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS {S HEREBY AMENDED AS FOLEQWS:
1. Add: “Tips on How fo Submit an Electronic Bid” — Exhibit is posted as a separate document.
2. Add: RFP Forms in Word - Exhibit is posied as a separate document,

3. Change to read: Page 40, PROPOSED PLAN, Category A, Working Artists Studio Galleries, #10, “Provide a
detailed budget for your organization in order to operate and maintain a Working Artist Studio Gallery.”

4. Change to read: Page 42, PROPOSED PLAN, Category B, Galleries, #9, “Provide a detailed budget for your
organization in order to operate and maintain a Gallery.”

B. QUESTIONS SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 011, RESTRICTIONS ON COMMUNICATION:

Question 1: If we were interested in the space that formerly houses Monte Wade Gallery, who would we contact? We
would want to put our offices there and I’'m not sure that this is even an option with the “rezoning” of the buildings. Can
you point us in the right direction if it might be viable?

Response: The building that was occupied by Monte Wade Gallery is not immediately available for lease. The space is
included in the currently open La Villita RFP for Retail Shops, Galleries, and Working Artist Studio Galleries. The space is
recommended for a Retail Shop use. Individuals or businesses interested in leasing the space beginning August 1, 2015
should submit a proposal through this RFFP process. The space is recommended as a Retail Shop use; respondents may
submit for Gallery use or Working Artist Studio Gallery use; however office use will not be considered.

Question 2: I'm from Casa Manos Alegres and after working for weeks now on the RFP for the spaces in La Villita, | am
more confused than ever. | am trying to fit my "business” into which category that | think it will successfully get chosen in.
My problem is like trying to fit a triangle into a circle. Do you have any suggestion for my resolution? What am |
considered?

Response: See response to Question 38 on Addendum ill.

Lueestion 2.1 also am stiii confused as io the siiuation: i.e., if | have io repiace say the a/c unitfunits in the buiiding | may
be selected for, and if in a couple of years it needs to replaced again, who is responsible?
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Response: If you propose replacement of current HVAC unit and are selected, City staff will work with you to ensure the
replacement system is compatible with La Villita systems. Afterward, during the term of the lease, any repairs to the
HVAC system are the responsibility of the City of San Antonio (COSA), who is responsible for maintenance, repairs and
replacement of all HVAC systems in La Villita. All units located in the buildings are operated by fan coils and supplied by
Chilled Water. If a unit is determined nonfunctional and needs to be replaced, the COSA maintenance team and
contractors witl evaluate the condition, and if needed, schedule the unit to be replaced, based upon available fundlng
This is not the responsibility of the lease holder.

Question 4: The lights in the ceiling of building 6 that | am presently in have continually needed the ballasts replaced.
The last electrician who came to do work said the problem will persist even if the building were to be rewired because of
the fact CPS needs to upgrade the wiring in the entire village, that there are power surges. What will that situation mean?

Response: Staff is aware of the ongoing issues with the florescent lighting fixtures and malfunctioning ballasts in Buiiding

6. It has been determined by staff, in coordination with the Building Equipment and Services Department (BESD), that the

lighting fixtures require replacement; such work must be completed by the tenant. The current electrical W|r|ng and/or
service box supporting the building is not the source of the problem.

City Public Service (CPS) does not provide electrical support such as rewiring and/or adding breakers to service boxes.
The COSA staff is not aware of any power surges in the village. The village has adequate voltage throughout to support
the buildings, plazas and to provide supplement service for large events. The COSA will provide the staff to assess
and/or evaluate electrical service boxes, if needed.

Question 5: | have read the description on a couple of these buildings that need much more work than what the common
artist or business person like myself may be able to pay for. When | read that | may receive an abatement, POSSIBLY,
who is to determine if | can successfully get it done on good time, receive a certificate of occupancy and get on with
business without a loss of revenue? The certificate of occupancy is granted to the individual/individuals renting or leasing
these buildings. When we moved into this building in 1988 we had many situations to correct to the inspectors discretion.

Response: The RFP language does not mention possible rental abatements; but rather states: *The City will provide
rental abatements in the amount of 80% of approved, documented, and verified capital improvements to the lease space
over the first five (5) years of the lease agreement. Any and all improvements must be reviewed and approved by City.”

Respondents are expected to complete their due diligence and carefully review the space, gaining an understanding of
necessary capital improvements needed to achieve their vision and implement their proposal. Respondents should also
plan their improvements (utilizing professional assistance, if needed) to ensure they understand the necessary timeline
and budget for such improvements.

Question 6: From the walkthrough report, Interior Features, Comments, "Eliminate planting beds at north side of building,
including removal of large tree, which could damage foundation.” This is writien as a directive statement. Will it be
mandatory for the winning bidder/lessee to remove the tree, or is this just a recommendation.....or will the city pay fo
remove the tree [the tree being on the grounds, but external to the leased structure leased area]?

Response: It will not be mandatery for the selected respondent to remove the free. All work exterior to the building is the
responsibility of the City of San Antonio and La Villita. Staff will review facility needs and available budgets to determine
implementation of recommendations.

Question 7: From the walkthrough report, Interior Features, Comments: "Building not accessible...” [ADA] ..."Install
handrails at front entrance.” Again, written as a directive. Is the winning [essee expected to instail handraiis? Oris this a
recommendation? Isn't the facility "grandfathered®, i.e., exempted from certain upgrades that would satisfy ADA ruies?
Also, in lieu of handrails, could a ramp be installed to meet ADA requirements for access?

Response: It will not be mandatory for the selected respondent to install the hand rails. All work exterior fo the building is
the responsibility of the City of San Antonio and La Villita. Staff will review facility needs and available budgets to
determine implementation of recommendations. If the respondent chooses, they may propose to install a ramp as

part of their proposal. If the respondent is selected, City staff would coordinate with them to ensure the ramp is installed
per code requirements. Respendent would qualify for abatement basad upoen the cost of the improvement.

Guestion §: Regarding meodifications and improvements to the structure, including the porch and sieps, are there |

state historic preservation restrictions?
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Response: Yes, there are local and state historic preservation restrictions.

Question 9: Are there any restrictions, local or state, regarding installation of solar tubes, to bring natural daylight into the
studio? [Solar tubes have a small bulbous dome, about 14 inches in diameter that sticks up through the roof about eight
inches.] They are generally not noticeable and are below the peak of the roof, unlike a chimney that extends two.to four
feet above the peak of the roof.

Response: This matter has been addressed with the City's Office of Historic Preservation (OHP). OHP does not believe
there are explicit local or state restrictions about the use of solar tubes. Based upon the description provided in the
question {14 inches in diameter and 8 inches high), the panels will be quite visible from the exterior where they penetrate
the roof. :

Since the houses in La Villita are very small and mostly single story homes, even a minor exterior change such as this
may adversely impact the historic look and feel of the structures. Any exterior alterations to these structures would
require review through the Historic and Design and Review Commission {HDRC) through the Office of Historic
Preservation {OHP) and the Texas Historical Commission, with the overriding goal being to protect and preserve these
significant resources and to have as few modern intrusions and alterations as possible while keeping the property viable
for modern use. QHP would recommend, based on the limited information about these, that they not be allowed to be
installed in the homes in La Villita.

For City owned facilities, any potential request submitted to the HDRC must first receive approval by the City Department
responsible for managing said facilities. Based upon the information provided, Department of Culture and Creative
Development {DCCD) will not authorize any request to install solar tubes. A more efficient method to provide appropriate
lighting would be to install electrical light fixtures in the facility.

Question 10: Is the fireptace and chimney functional in building 24?7 Are wood fires allowed, i.e., are there any city
ordinances prohibiting wood fires?

Response: The fireplace in building 24 is functional, however will have to be brought up to standards. Staff will review
the current condition with the lessee to determine if operating the fireplace is feasible and allowable by City Code.

Question 11: Building 24 has cold water to a sink only, i.e., no toilet. Is this because there is not a sewage drain line
adequately sized for a toilet up to the building? [standard sink drain lines are 1.5 inch diameter, and toilet drains are.....4
inches] If so, what is the distance from the external wall of the structure to the nearest adequately sized sewer/drain line?

Response: The sink in building 24 was installed by a previous tenant which currentty has a 2 inch line that run
underneath the flooring. There is a 4 inch cleanout line that is within a foot of the external wall of the structure, which
likely connects to a 4 inch sewer line. All indications are that the cleanout line and 2 inch sink line are directly connected
to a sewer line.

Question 12: Regarding capital improvements, | read that the city would abate the rent at 80% of the amount spent on
capital improvements. Please clarify. does this mean, if | spend, $1000 on capital improvements, the city would
reducefforgive $800 of my rent for that year?

Response: The rental abatement would be applied over the initial five (5) year term of the lease. If a selected tenant were
to invest $1000.00 in approved capital improvements, $800.00 would be abated from their rent over the initial term.

Question 13a: Regarding A/C and heating in Building 24: the condition report states, "unit said fo be undersized and
reportedly has had frequent problems with condensation overflow.” Where is the unit located, and where is the
condensate overflowing, i.e., inside the building, in the attic and leaking onto the ceiling?

Response: The HVAC unit is located in a closest in the front room and on the northeast corner of the building. The
condensate drain goes from the back side of the unit, through the exterior wall fo the outside. There is no indication of
frequent problems with the condensation overflow of the unit. The building has two rooms, the current unit only supplies
air to the front room, the back room currently. has.no ductwork or air vents, whicteis. why the report states undersized. - -
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Response: The heating unit is electric.
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Question 13c: Regarding Building 24, is there a gas line servicing the structure?
Response: There is no gas line in building 24.

Question 13d: Regarding Building 24, is the AC unit evaporating cooling or refrigerated air?
Response: |t is an evaporating cooling unit, fan coil supplied by chilled water.

Question 14: The RFP states the term of the contract is five years. A lot of small businesses fail in the first few years. If
the business fails in two or three years is the lessee still obligated to pay the lease?

Response: Current leases include a six month notification for termination of leases, which will be included in the new
leases. If the tenant is not successful in their business endeavor, they would at a maximum, be responsible for 6 months
of rental payments from the date they provide notice.

Question 15: Does the business need to declare bankruptcy legally terminate the lease agreement, and avoid continued
payment of rent?

Response: A tenant would NOT be required to declare bankruptcy to ferminate the lease with a six month notice.

Question 16a; Little Studio Gallery, Building #23 is a legal partnership recognized by the Internal Revenue Service and
granted an EIN number. Within our partnership are six individual persons comprised of 5 professional artist painters and 1
jeweler. Each of us works one day a week Monday thru Saturday. In any given year, each of us would work
approximately 52 times at the Little Studio Gallery during the year. Because the gallery is so small, it can only
accommodate one artist at a time. It usually takes approximately 3-5 days to finish a painting from start fo finish without
interruptions. Obviously, it will take longer with stops to assist customers during our scheduled time to be open. With the
above explanation, if we started a painting in the gallery, we would have to work on it for 5 weeks before it was finished.
We would not have enough paintings completed in the gallery as we could only finish 10-15 paintings within a year. This
is not enough to stay in business and meet this requirement. Each of our artists paints several hours a day, several days
a week but only one day at the Little Studio Gallery. Can this requirement be modified so that “some of the art
workfjewelry is painted within the gallery but the majority is painted off-site at the artists’ personal studio?

Response: Current La Villita leases include use clauses with percentages of 80% artwork and 20% non-art allowable for
sale within shops. The City desires to achieve the original vision of the 1939 Ordinance and create an Arts Village. For
this reason the percentages required within the RFP were adjusted to require 90% of inventory to be “handmade
arts/crafis” and 10% “art related products” for Galleries and Working Artists Studio Galleries.

For the Working Artist Studio Galleries, the 90% “handmade art/craft” requirement was broken down into “50% must be
created/produced within the galflery and 40% allowed to be produced off premise. This requirement is for all respondents,
whether submitted by a single artist or a collaborative of artists. Adjustments to this requirement will not be made.

As stated in response to Question 5 in Addendum 2, “it is understood that the artist will not be able to immediately create
the 50% of the art inventory within the shop on their first day of operations. Artists will be required to stock a minimum of
50% of their inventory with their own work upon opening, which at that point wiil be created off premises. However, after
that point, they must replace/replenish any sold inventory of their own artwork with work created within the shop.”

Question 16b: | do not understand the City’s rational for such ambiguous percentages as 50% of art work completed at
the gallery unless there is only one artists involved at the working artist studio. What are we to do if there are 6 artists or
maybe 30 artists? Can the City make some adjustments to this requirement when there are many artists within the
working artist's studio?

Response: Please see response to RFP Question 16a above.

“Quéstion 17: Our Tax ID has not been established yet. Will it be too late 10 register the business and register as a -

L
vendor with San Antonio govemnment?
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Response: No, it will not be too late to register as a vendor and submit a proposal since the RFP proposal due date has
been extended to November 12, 2014.

Question 18: On "Proposed Plan” number one, it asks for a vision statement, could you enlighten me on what, in more
detail you are loaking for?

Response: A vision statement is a declaration of the respondent’s goals for the long-term future. This can range from one
line to several paragraphs. A vision statement identifies what the respondent would iike to achieve or accomplish. A good
vision statement provides the inspiration for the daily operations of a business and molds its strategic decisions.

Aspirational in nature, vision statements lay out the most important primary goals for a company. These are not to be
confused with business plans. Vision statements generally don't outline a ptan to achieve those goals, but by outlining the
key objectives, they enable the company and its employees to develop business strategies to achieve the stated goals.

Question 19: On "Price Schedule” you ask us to provide a MAG (Minimum Annual Guarantee) of proposed rental
payments. | do not understand what you precisely ask for, can you simplify this please?

Response: The RFP requests that respondents: “Provide a Minimum Annual Guarantee (MAG) of proposed rental
payments to the City based upon the square footage of the space.” The RFP requires a minimal monthly rental rate for
each use category. Respondents must provide a monthly rate proposed. The MAG is the value of rental payments over
the period of one year and is based upon the monthly rate. All that is required is that respondent fill in the blank with the
proposed monthly rental rate.

Question 20: In regards to Proof of Insurance, the RFP site online states, "See Exhibit 4" and | can’t seem to find it,
where can this be located?

Response: Exhibit 4, Insurance Requiremenfs, can be found on page 24 in the RFP document.

Question 21: Is there a place for La Viilita business owners/employees fo park at no cost?

Response: No.

Question 22: If my family member has a separate business in Mexico in her name and | have a separate business in
San Antonio in my name, can both of us submit our own separate proposal for a different building at La Villita? We are
not dependent on each other even though we are related.

Response: There is no limitation on family relationships between respondents.

Question 23: Based on the RFP and Q&A, the city is requesting to raise the quality of artistic offerings in La Villita. Is the
city willing to negotiate a different ratio (original: reproduction) of, perhaps 70:30 in an RFP proposal?

Response: No, these limits will not be adjusted to this ratio. Current La Villita [eases include use clauses with
percentages of 80% artwork and 20% non-art aliowable for sale within shops. The City desires to achieve the original
vision of the 1939 Ordinance and create an Arts Village. For this reason the percentages required within the RFP were
adjusted to require 90% of inventory to be “handmade arts/crafts” and 10% “art refated products” for Galleries and
Working Artists Studio Galleries.

Question 24: | watched several of the river barges pass by the Arneson River Theater. Of course, the tour guide
speeches are scripted, so they all present the same information. The tour guides mention the Arneson River Theater, and
call boat occupants attention to the stage "on the right", noting that it was in a scene from the movie, "Miss Congeniality.”
The scripted speech does not include a mention of La Villita, historic filled with art, pottery, metalwork, jewelry shop, and
cafe-coffee shop. There is a major disconnect between the Riverwalk and La Villita. The city needs to do more fo
promote La Villita and encourage people to visit. What are the city's plans to do that?

Response: The City will reach out to the City’s Barge Concessions Operator to discuss opportunities to adjust their
discussion poinfs. . . : . _ S

iestion 25a: One business has operable wooden exterior shutiers with a locking clasp (when the shutters are closed}.

Coo ! V-

Can similar lockable shutters be installed over the windows of building 247
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Response: It is very likely that the house historically had shutters. According to the Office of Historic Preservation
(OHP), the question regarding shutters would be centered on what the proposed shutters would look like and how they
would be attached to the historic building. Final approval would have to be requested through the Historic Design and
Review Commission (HDRC). The shutters, if incorporated, would not be allowed to be closed during business hours as
this would take away from the historic character of the building.

Question 25b: i not, can the lessee install something on the inside such as, lockable blinds, shutters, fire-safe bars?
Response: Please see above response fo Question 25a.

Question 26: The purpose of blocking in windows is two-fold: available wall space, and strong sunlight through the
windows hampering vision (of both patrons and the working artist). The windows are large and take up a lot of wall space
{bldg 24}, which significantly reduces the wall space available to exhibit paintings. Sunlight will come through the south
facing windows most of the day. This is a significant detriment because the strong sunlight causes the pupils to constrict,
making it hard to view the paintings. The city wants a more professional gallery atmosphere. Most galleries have a
window or two facing the street, but the majority of the gallery space has window-less walls and they use their own
artificial light which they control to show the paintings in their best light. Can windows be blocked in from the inside,
leaving the windows intact, so the outside appearance is not affected?

Response: Please see above response to Question 25a. DCCD will be supportive of a request to install shutters on the
exterior of the building; however, approval to do so will be required by HDRC. Regardless of placement of exterior
shutters, the City will prohibit the “blocking” of windows and would also prohibit exterior interior blinds to be closed/shut
during business operating hours. This would detract from the historic arts village concept.

Question 27: In regards to building 24, the walk through notes lack of ADA compliance, and suggests a handrait for the
steps. It is very feasible to construct a ramp from the north end of the porch onto the stone paved common area. The
drop is about 5 inches, and the distance from the edge of the porch to the edge of the stone covered common area is
about 5-6 ft. A section of the low stone wall needs to be cuf out (very easy with a concrete saw). Would the city be willing
to install a stone paved ramp for ADA access?

Response: All Work exterior to the building is the responsibility of the City of San Antonio and La Villita. Staff will review
facility needs and available budgets to determine implementation of recommendations.

Question 28: For vacant & locked buildings, respondents need access to assess the building and inspect electrical,
plumbing, and HVAC systems prior to submitting a proposal, at least 14 calendar days prior to due date. When can this be
arranged?

Response: Review of vacant buildings can be coordinated with Jesus Garza, interim manager of La Villita. He can be
reached at 210-207-8611 to schedule such site visits.

Question 29: Who are the applicants submitting proposals for La Villita space?
Response: Please see response to Question 45 on La Villita RFP Addendum |i.

Question 30: Insurance requirement. The RFP states that "Prior to the commencement of any work under this
Agreement, Respondent shall furnish copies of all required endorsements and completed Certificate(s) of Insurance.” My
insurance company will only provide proof [that | have the required business insurance] once a palicy is issued, i.e., paid
{the initial payment is 25% of the annual premium). It doesn't make sense to have insurance coverage during the
proposal period, evaluation, City Council vote, etc, which will take six months or more. | don't want to buy insurance
coverage if my proposal is not accepted or | do not end up in a lease for one of the La Villita spaces. Does the proposal
need to show insurance in effect at the time of submittal, or can | obtain insurance coverage during or immediately after
entering into a lease with the city?

Response: If the Respondent currently owns a business, the Respondent needs to provide insurance with their
submittal. The insurance needs to be in effect prior to the execution of the lease agreement and after acceptance of the
proposal. In the case a Respondent does not have a current business, once the proposal has been approved, but prior to
the lease commencing, selected Respondents would be required to provide evidence of the insurance.

Question 31: Can we be provided instructions on how io eiecironically submit the proposai through the portai?
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Response: An exhibit is attached to this addendum called “Tips on How to Submit an Electronic Bid” which are fips on
how to submit an elecironic bid and how to maintain your vendor account. This guide is posted as a separate document.

Question 32: Can we receive the forms and attachments (for example, Attachment A) in Word format to more easily
complete?

Response: The RFP Forms in Word are posted with this addendum as a separate document.

o

Denise D. Gallegos, C.P.M., CPPB
Procurement Administrator
Finance Department — Purchasing Division
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